

Published on *British Columbia Drug and Poison Information Centre (BC DPIC)* (http://www.dpic.org)

Home > Printer-friendly PDF > Printer-friendly PDF

Drug Safety News from Around the World (2009-01)

Access: professional Article type:

drug information

Barbara Cadario B.Sc.(Honours), B.Sc.Phm., M.Sc., BC Drug and Poison Information Centre

REGULATORY NEWS

- Efalizumab (Raptiva) removed from the market in Canada and the EU: The European Medicines Agency conducted a risk/benefit analysis and recommended on February 19th that efalizumab should be removed from the market in Europe because the risks outweigh the benefits. The main concern arose when cases of progressive multifocal leukoencephalopathy (PML), including 2 deaths, as well as reports of Guillain-Barre syndrome, encephalitis, and meningitis were reported in patients taking efalizumab. PML is a potential fatal demyelinating disease of the CNS caused by reactivation of the JC virus. The manufacturer stopped selling this drug in Canada the next day. The FDA issued a public health advisory but to date the drug has not been removed from the market in the US.¹⁻⁴
- Observe patients taking natalizumab for symptoms of PML: PML has rarely been reported in patients taking natalizumab. Symptoms include weakness, clumsiness, vision disturbances, and changes in cognition.⁴
- Important changes in dose conversion guidelines for fentanyl transdermal: Two analgesic equivalency tables are provided on the Health Canada website⁵ for safe conversion to fentanyl transdermal systems.
- Topical anesthetic warnings: Health Canada issued a warning concerning topical anesthetic products such as Emla and compounded products. Excessive exposure has lead to methemoglobinemia, CNS toxicity and cardiovascular collapse, especially if large amounts are applied prior to laser hair removal. Application to damaged skin or under occlusion can increase drug absorption and toxicity. The FDA issued a safety warning following the publication of a study on the use of 4% topical lidocaine gel to reduce discomfort during mammographic procedures. In this small study, no adverse events were seen, but the concern is that large amounts of lidocaine could be absorbed, especially with plastic wrapping, leading to lidocaine toxicity. T,8

- More adulterated drugs discovered: Health Canada and the FDA issued warnings on 68 "natural" products promoted for weight loss that were found to contain undeclared sibutramine, phenytoin, bumetanide, rimonabant, and/or phenolphthalein. ^{9,10}
- Movie-goers in the UK view dead rat warning about the risk of fake drugs purchased over the internet: In the UK, 33,000 men buy drugs over the internet, and it is estimated that 50-90% of these drugs are counterfeit. To warn of the dangers of buying drugs from unregulated sources, a unique advertisement has been shown in UK cinemas since January 19th. The advertisement shows a man coughing up a dead rat after ingesting a pill bought on the internet. It can be viewed at www.realdanger.co.uk (warning: it is quite graphic).

CLINICAL STUDIES AND CASES

- Hospital discharge improvements by nurses and pharmacists: Adverse events are
 common after patients are discharged from hospital. This study used a nurse discharge
 advocate plus a clinical pharmacist to coordinate discharges. The discharge plan was
 done by the nurse. The clinical pharmacist telephoned the patient a few days after
 discharge to review medication use. Fifty-three percent of patients needed help from the
 pharmacists, such as contacting the prescriber. The interventions decreased postdischarge hospital visits by about 30%.¹²
- Text messaging to deliver pharmaceutical care: In this pilot study, patients were texted reminders about their medication. For example, a text message would be sent ten minutes before the time when the medication should be taken, and a reminder was sent to renew the prescription at the time of the last dose. The patients were also sent lists of the most common adverse reactions that might occur, with a reminder to contact a pharmacist if an ADR occurred. Despite these reminders, many patients did not take their medications on time. However, many patients appreciated the messages about precautions.¹³
- **Bisphosphonate adverse effects:** A number of uncommon ADRs have now been identified for bisphosphonates: femoral fractures, osteonecrosis of the jaw, and severe musculoskeletal pain. It is unclear if these drugs increase the risk of esophageal cancer; cases have been reported but causality is uncertain.¹⁴
- Rare Gardasil® reactions: In Australia there have been five reports of CNS demyelination 1-21 days after a 2nd or 3rd vaccination with Gardasil®. Three of the women had a history of neurological episodes and were subsequently diagnosed with multiple sclerosis (MS). The women developed partial transverse myelitis (inflammation of the spinal cord), hemiparesis (muscle weakness on one side of the body), or limb pseudoathetosis (abnormal writhing movements, usually of the fingers; see video at http://www.asktheneurologist.com/movement-disorders-lecture.html). All five women had partial or complete recovery. The authors conclude that, while MS is more common in young women, the atypical presentations and timing suggest that Gardasil® may influence CNS inflammation. Caution may be warranted in patients with MS. Six adolescent girls developed stroke, DVT or pulmonary embolism after immunization with HPV vaccine. A causal relationship is unclear, since the girls had other factors that might have been contributory such as treatment with oral contraceptives. 16
- Possible interaction between clopidogrel and PPIs: Controversy exists over whether
 or not PPIs reduce the clinical benefits of clopidogrel. In this new study, all-cause
 mortality or rehospitalisation for acute coronary syndromes was significantly increased
 (adjusted OR 1.25) in patients who took a PPI (60% took omeprazole) along with
 clopidogrel. Clopidogrel is a prodrug that requires activation by a variety of P450

enzymes including CYP2C19, and PPIs inhibit CYP2C19 in vitro. Further research is needed to determine the clinical impact of this interaction and which PPIs interact. 17,18

References

- 1. Suspension of marketing of Raptiva (efalizumab) in Canada For Health Professionals. Available from: URL: http://www.hc-sc.gc.ca/dhp-mps/medeff/advisories-avis/prof/ 2009/raptiva 2 hpc-cps-eng.php.
- European Medicines Agency recommends suspension of the marketing authorisation of Raptiva (efalizumab). Available from: URL: http://www.emea.europa.eu/humandocs/PDFs/EPAR/raptiva/2085709en.pdf.
- 3. FDA Public Health Advisory. Updated Safety Information about Raptiva (efalizumab). Available from: URL: http://www.fda.gov/cder/drug/advisory/efalizumab.htm.
- 4. New Safety Information Regarding Progressive Multifocal Leukoencephalopathy (PML) Associated with Tysabri (natalizumab) For Health Professionals. Available from: URL: http://www.hc-sc.gc.ca/dhp-mps/medeff/advisories-avis/prof/_2009/tysabri_2_hpc-cps-eng.php.
- Important Changes to the Dose Conversion Guidelines for Fentanyl Transdermal Systems - For Health Professionals. Available from: URL: http://www.hc-sc.gc.ca/dhp-mps/medeff/advisories-avis/prof/_2009/fentanyl_hpc-cps-eng.php.
- 6. Safety information regarding topical anesthetics and serious adverse events For Health Professionals. Available from: URL: http://www.hc-sc.gc.ca/dhp-mps/medeff/advisories-avis/prof/_2009/emla_ametop_hpc-cps-eng.php.
- 7. Lambertz CK et al. Premedication to Reduce Discomfort during Screening Mammography. Radiology 2008; 248 (3): 765-72.
- 8. FDA Public Health Advisory. Potential Hazards of Skin Products Containing Numbing Ingredients for Relieving Pain from Mammography and Other Medical Tests and Conditions. Available from: URL: http://www.fda.gov/cder/drug/advisory/topical_anesthetics2009.htm.
- 9. 68 Weight Loss Products. Available from: URL: http://www.hc-sc.gc.ca/ahc-asc/media/advisories-avis/_fpa-ape_2009/2009-32-eng.php.
- 10. FDA Expands Warning to Consumers About Tainted Weight Loss Pills. Available from: URL: http://www.fda.gov/bbs/topics/NEWS/2008/NEW01933.html.
- 11. New ad sends stark warning about dangers of buying fake medicine. Available from: URL: http://www.mhra.gov.uk/NewsCentre/Pressreleases/CON036056.
- 12. Jack BW, Chetty VK, Anthony D et al. A reengineered hospital discharge program to decrease rehospitalization. Ann InternMed 2009;150:178-187.
- 13. Mao Y, Zhang Y, Zhai S. Mobile phone text messaging for pharmaceutical care in a hospital in China. J Telemed Telecare 2008;14:410-414.
- 14. Kuehn BM. Long-term risks of bisphosphonates Probed. JAMA. 2009;301(7):710-711.
- 15. Sutton I, Lahoria R, Tan IL et al. CNS demyelination and quadrivalent HPV vaccination. Multiple Sclerosis 2009;15:116-119.
- 16. Human papillomavirus vaccine: Stroke and deep vein thrombosis (first reports), and pulmonary embolism: 6 case reports. Reactions Weekly:2009;1239: 17.
- 17. Ho PM, Maddox TM, Want L et al. Risk of adverse outcomes associated with concomitant use of clopidogrel and proton pump inhibitors following acute coronary syndrome. JAMA 2009;301(9):937-944.
- 18. Li XQ, Andersson TB, Ahlström M, Weidolf L. Comparison of inhibitory effects of the proton pump-inhibiting drugs omeprazole, esomeprazole, lansoprazole, pantoprazole, and rabeprazole on human cytochrome P450 activities. Drug Metab Dispos

©2009 B.C. Drug and Poison Information Centre

All rights reserved. No part of this publication may be reproduced or transmitted in any form by any means, electronic or mechanical, without permission from the publisher.

Originally published in BCPhA Tablet 2009;18(2):12

Keywords: adverse drug reactions pharmacovigilance

We are grateful to all the First Nations who have cared for and nurtured the lands and waters around us for all time, including the x?m??k??y??m (Musqueam), Sk?wx?wu?7mesh U?xwumixw (Squamish Nation), and s?l?ílw?ta? (Tsleil-Waututh Nation) on whose unceded and ancestral territory our centre is located.

© 2024 BC Drug and Poison Information Centre

All material found on the BC Drug and Poison Information Centre (DPIC) website is provided for informational purposes only. It is *not* meant to replace the expert advice of a healthcare professional such as a physician, pharmacist, nurse or qualified poison specialist. Use of this site is governed and restricted by specific terms of use. Please review the **full terms and conditions** below prior to using the DPIC website. In the event of a poisoning emergency, call your local poison control centre immediately. Portions of this web site are intended for healthcare professionals. Interpretation and application of information may require more detailed explanation than contained herein, particularly regarding any clinical information that is found in or linked to this site. Patients are advised to consult their health care provider regarding diagnosis and treatment, and for assistance in interpreting these materials and applying them in individual cases.

Terms and Conditions

Source URL (retrieved on 2025-04-19 01:06): http://www.dpic.org/article/professional/drug-safety-news-around-world-2009-01